

Policy Committee Meeting Combined Meeting of the Stafford EDD & Strafford MPO

Meeting Minutes
Friday, June 17, 2022
9:00 – 11:00 AM
Strafford Regional Planning Commission
Hybrid Meeting
Rochester, NH

1. Introductions

9:16 Chair David Landry called the meeting to order, and asked for introductions.

Committee members present: Bill Fisher, Farmington; Katrin Kasper, Lee; Barbara Holstein, Rochester; Rick Michaud, Somersworth; David Landry, Dover; Tom Crosby, Madbury; Michael Bobinsky, Somersworth; Michael Williams, COAST; Donald Hamann, Rochester; Joe Boudreau, Rochester; Evan McDougal, Wakefield; Michael Bobinsky, Somersworth; Herb Ueda, Rollinsford; David Landry, Dover.

Committee Members participating remotely: Peter Nelson, Newmarket; Glen Davison, DOT, Steve Diamond, Barrington; Dawn Genes, Lee; Ricky DiCillo, DES.

Staff members present: Jen Czysz, Colin Lentz.

Staff attending remotely: Rachel Dewey, Jackson Rand, Stephen Geis, James Burdin, Tyler Distefano.

Guest attending remotely: Donna Benton, Dover; Brian Hettrick., Rochester.

At 9:20 a.m. the meeting convened as the Strafford Metropolitan Planning Organization

2. Public Hearing Amendment 4 to the 2021-2024 TIP

At 9:20 a.m. D. Hamann MOTIONED to open the Public Hearing SECONDED by T. Crosby. All members were in agreement to open the Public hearing.

The Public hearing opened for the proposed Amendment #4 to the adopted 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). The TIP is a prioritized list of federal and state funded regional transportation projects programmed for the next four years. The amendment is necessary to account for project changes and to maintain consistency with the 2021-2024 State Transportation Improvement Program (STIP). SRPC is conducting this process in accordance with the Strafford MPO's public involvement procedures and federal and state regulations. Amendment #4 impacts projects listed in

the 2021-2024 TIP which is part of the 2021-2045 Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) for the region.

C. Lentz provided a summary of the amendments to the TIP which includes several state programs and two local projects with proposed changes. The new projects advancing through the TIP are the Milton sidewalk project and the widening of a portion of Route 11 in Rochester. New projects added to the MTP out years are the Dover Central Avenue Complete Streets and UNH South Drive project.

C. Lentz asked for questions or comments. There were no questions or discussions.

T. Crosby MOTIONED to close the Public Hearing SEONDED by M. Bobinsky. All in Favor. The Public Hearing Closed at 10:32 am

3. Action Items

a. Approve draft minutes of May 20, 2022

Bill Fisher MOTIONED to approve the May 20, 2022 minutes as written seconded by M. Bobinsky. A roll call vote was taken: B. Fisher, T. Crosby, K, Kasper, M. Bobinsky, B. Holstein, M. Williams, H. Ueda, D. Landry, P. Nelson, S. Diamond, R. DiCillo, G. Davison voting IN FAVOR. E. McDougal, D. Hamann, J. Boudreau, M. Richardson, D. Genes ABSTAIN. There were no objections. The motion passed with a majority in favor.

b. Amendment 4 to the 2021-2024 TIP

C. Lentz asked the members to entertain a vote to approve.

D. Hamann MOTIONED to approve Amendment 4 to the TIP SECONDED by E. McDougal. A roll call vote was taken: B. Fisher, T. Crosby, K, Kasper, M. Bobinsky, B. Holstein, M. Williams, H. Ueda, D. Landry, P. Nelson, S. Diamond, R. DiCillo, G. Davison, E. McDougal, D. Hamann, J. Boudreau, M. Richardson, D. Genes voting IN FAVOR. The motion passed with all members in favor.

4. Discussion Items

Updates to the draft nondiscrimination plan (including Limited English Proficiency and Environmental Justice)

C. Lentz explained that as a recipient of federal dollars, the MPO needs to conform to the Title VI Act and provide equitable access to the process. the public comment period for the updates is open until July 15, 2022. A formal vote to approve will take place at the July Policy Meeting. This latest draft of the Nondiscrimination plan includes new information and analysis of people with Limited English Proficiency (LEP) and populations that fall under Environmental Justice provisions. Both sections include description of demographics, geography, and action steps by SRPC. LEP equity considerations include things like translating documents; Environmental Justice requires consideration of disproportionate impacts from transportation planning and equitable distribution of benefits.

C. Lentz asked members to contact him if they have any questions.

5. Adjourn the MPO Policy Meeting

At 10:00 a.m. the Stafford Economic Development portion of the meeting adjourned.

At 10:00 a.m. the meeting convened as the Stafford Regional Planning Commission & EDD Board of Directors

Public Hearing: 2022 Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS)

J. Burdin explained SRPC staff have completed a draft of the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2022 and released it for the required 30-day public comment period. Staff also presented an overview of the CEDS 2022 to commissioners at the May 13, 2022 joint SRPC/Policy Committee meeting. As part of the noticed public comment period, notice was also given for a public hearing at the June 17, 2022 joint SRPC/Policy Committee meeting.

Staff compiled a record of all comments received during the public comment period. This record also indicates what changes, if any, have been made to the plan in response or any recommendations staff has for commissioners to consider during discussion and adoption. Staff recommends that all four projects be included in the adopted CEDS.

J. Burdin recommended to the Commissioners to open a public hearing and accept comments from any members of the public present in person or electronically. After comments by the public are complete, the Commissioners should discuss adoption of the CEDS, including any final edits to the plan that are desired prior to adoption. Staff requests that the Commission approve a motion to adopt the Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 2022 update (either as written or as amended by Commissioners).

At 10:05 a.m. M. Bobinsky MOTIONED to open the Public Hearing for the 2022 CEDS SECONDED by D. Hamann. ALL IN FAVOR.

M. Bobinsky thanked J. Burdin for the explanation on the Spaulding Turnpike Exit Ten project and the description of SRPC being a sponsor of this project at this stage. M. Bobinsky stated for the record that as the project moved forward and goes into the planning stage, the implementation component is more involved with the three cities. He expressed appreciation for the level of effort that staff has put into the project.

There was a brief discussion on the Town of Farmington's levee and the potential for the designation of downtown Farmington as a floodplain zone. B. Fisher explained the levee is in good shape and has been inspected and has passed all requirements put forth by the Army Corps of Engineers. This is just a matter of the Army Corps of Engineers and FEMA working together to come to a resolution.

At 10:10 a.m. D. Hamann MOTIONED to close the Public Hearing SECONDED by K. Kasper. ALL IN FAVOR

J. Czysz requested **Agenda Item 2-d, Motion to adopt the 2022 CEDS Update**, be brought forward.

D. Hamann MOTIONED to accept the 2022 Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS) SECONDED by M. Bobinski. A roll call vote was taken: B. Fisher, T. Crosby, K, Kasper, M. Bobinsky, B. Holstein, H. Ueda, D. Landry, P. Nelson, S. Diamond, G. Davison, E. McDougal, D. Hamann, J. Boudreau, M. Richardson, D. Genes voting IN FAVOR. There were no objections. The motion passed with all members in favor.

1. Action Items

a. Minutes from February 24, 2022

D. Hamann MOTIONED to approve the minutes of February 24, 2022 as written SECONDED by T. Crosby. ALL IN FAVOR. The motion passed with all members in favor.

b. Adopt FY 2023 Budget recommended by the Executive Committee

J. Czysz highlighted items on the proposed FY 2023 Budget. She explained that some shifts between the current year and the upcoming FY 2023 between the various revenue streams are due to more grants coming in from federal sources that state. On the revenue side there is an increase due to Lee and Milton becoming dues paying communities.

The expense table reflects some basic shifts to staffing levels as well as in the contracted work. The allocation for professional development has increased to \$1000 per staff member.

D, Hamann MOTIONED to adopt the FY 2023 Budget SECONDED by T. Crosby. A roll call vote was taken: B. Fisher, T. Crosby, K, Kasper, M. Bobinsky, B. Holstein, H. Ueda, D. Landry, P. Nelson, S. Diamond, G. Davison, E. McDougal, D. Hamann, J. Boudreau, M. Richardson, D. Genes voting IN FAVOR. There were no objections. The motion passed with all members in favor.

c. Elect FY2023 Officers & Executive Committee members

J. Czysz reported that the current 7 members of the Executive Committee have expressed interest and willingness to continue on the Executive Committee. The current officers have agreed to continue in their roles. The committee has two alternate seats to fill. Katrin Kasper of Lee has offered to be appointed as an alternate.

Current members are:
David Landry, Dover; Chair
Peter Nelson, Newmarket, Vice Chair
Tom Crosby, Madbury, Secretary, Treasurer
Donald Hamann, Rochester
Barbara Holstein, Rochester
Michael Bobinsky, Somersworth
William Fisher, Farmington

D. Hamann MOTIONED to accept the Slate of Officers as recommended by the Executive Committee with K. Kasper joining as an alternate. SECONDED by T. Crosby. A roll call vote was taken: B. Fisher, T. Crosby, K, Kasper, M. Bobinsky, B. Holstein, H. Ueda, D. Landry, P. Nelson, S. Diamond, G. Davison, E. McDougal, D. Hamann, J. Boudreau, M. Richardson, D. Genes voting IN FAVOR. The motion passed with all members in favor.

d. Adopt the 2022 CEDS Update

This item was moved to item #1

2. Other Business & Updates from Staff

- J. Czysz reported that the Annual Meeting takes place next week and that all business items normally addressed have been covered today at this meeting. This is because this is the first in person meeting in two years and the focus will be on the panelist presentation and recognitions.
- J. Boudreau reported on the Resiliency Committees upcoming meeting.

3. Commissioners' roundtable

- B. Fisher reported that if the Army Corps of Engineers and FEMA cannot come into agreement regarding the Farmington levee, it will increase the 100-year floodplain by 75 percent. The ACE has approved the levy and it is just a matter of FEMA and the ACE coming to an agreement. He reiterated that the levee is in good shape.
- S. Diamond reported that at the Little Bay Road, he saw a bicyclist use the crossing button, but traffic did not yield to allow the bicyclist safe passage across. He asked if there a way of clarifying who has the right of way at rotaries and to add signage to that effect. G. Davison answered he will bring this concern to the Bureau of Traffic.
- H. Ueda thanked Colin for his extensive visit with the Selectmen. His assistance was hugely helpful and the Board was impressed by the services provided by SRPC.

4. Citizens Forum

There were no citizen comments.

5. Adjourn

M. Bobinsky MOTIONED to adjourn SECONDED by D. Hamann. All in favor. Meeting adjourned.